
From:  Adebayo, Omolayo 

 

Sent:  8/13/2021 9:10:52 AM 

 

To:  TTAB EFiling 

 

CC:   

 

Subject:  U.S. Trademark Application Serial No. 88870879 - BRICK STREET - 120139-3004 - Request for 

Reconsideration Denied - Return to TTAB 

 

 

 

************************************************* 

Attachment Information: 

Count:  11 

Files:  Terrace live music.jpg, Terrace restaurant.jpg, Hard Rock night club.jpg, Hard Rock restaurant.jpg, 

Bobby McKeys night club.jpg, Bobby McKeys restaurant.jpg, Bluebird Cafe night club.jpg, Bluebird Cafe 

restaurant.jpg, Birchmere night club with live music.jpg, Birchmere restaurant.jpg, 88870879.doc 

  



United States Patent and Trademark Office (USPTO) 
Office Action (Official Letter) About Applicant’s Trademark Application 

 

U.S. Application Serial No. 88870879 

 

Mark:  BRICK STREET 

 

 

          

 

Correspondence Address:   

       TERRELL R. MILLER 

       FOLEY & LARDNER LLP 

       1000 LOUISIANA ST SUITE 2000 

       HOUSTON, TX 77002-2099 

        

  

 

 

 

Applicant:  Weisman Enterprises Holdings, Inc. 

 

 

 

Reference/Docket No. 120139-3004 

 

Correspondence Email Address:   

       IPDocketing@foley.com 

 

 

 

REQUEST FOR RECONSIDERATION  

AFTER FINAL ACTION 

DENIED 

 

 

Issue date:  August 13, 2021 

  
 
Applicant’s request for reconsideration is denied.  See 37 C.F.R. §2.63(b)(3).  The trademark 

examining attorney has carefully reviewed applicant’s request and determined the request did not:  
(1) raise a new issue, (2) resolve all the outstanding issue(s), (3) provide any new or compelling 



evidence with regard to the outstanding issue(s), or (4) present analysis and arguments that were 
persuasive or shed new light on the outstanding issue(s).  TMEP §§715.03(a)(ii)(B), 715.04(a).   
 

Specifically, applicant argues that there is no likelihood of confusion between the applied for mark and 

the cited registered mark because the marks are dissimilar in connotation and commercial impression 

due to the inclusion of the term “MARKET” in the registered mark. Applicant states that this wording 

“reinforces the impression of the full service grocery store or produce market.” However, this argument 

is unpersuasive because disclaimed matter that is descriptive of or generic for a party’s services is 

typically less significant or less dominant when comparing marks.  In re Detroit Athletic Co., 903 F.3d 

1297, 1305, 128 USPQ2d 1047, 1050 (Fed. Cir. 2018) (citing In re Dixie Rests., Inc., 105 F.3d 1405, 1407, 

41 USPQ2d 1531, 1533-34 (Fed. Cir. 1997)); TMEP §1207.01(b)(viii), (c)(ii). The term “MARKET” is 

disclaimed in the registration as descriptive of applicant’s services, therefore, consumers are less likely 

to focus on this wording when identifying the source of registrant’s restaurant services.  

 

Applicant also argues that BRICK STREET MARKET provides coffee shop and restaurant services through 

its full service grocery store, not a night club, thus the services of applicant and registrant are unrelated. 

However, “‘[a] showing of actual confusion is not necessary to establish a likelihood of confusion.’”  In re 

i.am.symbolic, llc, 866 F.3d 1315, 1322, 123 USPQ2d 1744, 1747 (Fed. Cir. 2017) (quoting Herbko Int’l, 

Inc. v. Kappa Books, Inc., 308 F.3d 1156, 1164-65, 64 USPQ2d 1375, 1380 (Fed. Cir. 2002)); TMEP 

§1207.01(d)(ii).  “[T]he relevant test is likelihood of confusion, not actual confusion.”  In re Detroit 

Athletic Co., 903 F.3d 1297, 1309, 128 USPQ2d 1047, 1053 (Fed. Cir. 2018) (emphasis in original).  

“Uncorroborated statements of no known instances of actual confusion . . . are of little evidentiary 

value,” especially in ex parte examination.  In re Majestic Distilling Co., 315 F.3d 1311, 1317, 65 USPQ2d 

1201, 1205 (Fed. Cir. 2003).  

 

Although applicant states that the registrant’s services will only be provided through a full service 

grocery store, the identification of services in the registration does not include such a restriction.   The 

previously attached evidence from www.930.com, www.ginnyssupperclub.com, 

www.thehamiltondc.com, www.iguananyc.com, www.songbyrddc.com, 

http://www.madamsorgan.com/, https://dc9.club/, https://www.gypsysallys.com/, 

https://www.pearlstreetwarehouse.com/, and https://www.unionstage.com/ shows that the relevant 

services in the registration, namely, restaurant services featuring sit-down service of food and take-out 

restaurant services, and the relevant services in the application, in the nature of night club services, 

namely, providing night club facilities for the entertainment of patrons through live and/or recorded 

musical performances, are provided by the same company and are marketed under the same mark. The 

additional Internet evidence attached consisting of website screenshots from birchmere.com, 

bluebirdcafe.com, bobbymckeys.com, hardrock.com, and terracerestaurantandlounge.com further 

establishes that restaurants featuring sit-down and take-out services also provide night club 

entertainment through live and recorded musical performances, thus, the services in the application and 

registration are related.  

 

http://www.930.com/
http://www.songbyrddc.com/
http://www.madamsorgan.com/
https://dc9.club/
https://www.gypsysallys.com/
https://www.pearlstreetwarehouse.com/
https://www.unionstage.com/


Applicant further contends that applicant’s and registrant’s consumers are sophisticated purchasers, 

thus, are not likely to confuse the parties’ services. However, the fact that purchasers are sophisticated 

or knowledgeable in a particular field does not necessarily mean that they are sophisticated or 

knowledgeable in the field of trademarks or immune from source confusion.  TMEP §1207.01(d)(vii); 

see, e.g., Stone Lion Capital Partners, LP v. Lion Capital LLP, 746 F.3d. 1317, 1325, 110 USPQ2d 1157, 

1163-64 (Fed. Cir. 2014); Top Tobacco LP v. N. Atl. Operating Co., 101 USPQ2d 1163, 1170 (TTAB 2011).   

 

Accordingly, the following refusal made final in the Office action dated March 8, 2021 is maintained and 

continued:   

 

 •  Section 2(d) Refusal for likelihood of confusion with U.S. Registration No. 4740059 

 

See TMEP §§715.03(a)(ii)(B), 715.04(a).   

 

If applicant has already filed an appeal with the Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, the Board will be 

notified to resume the appeal.  See TMEP §715.04(a).  

 

If applicant has not filed an appeal and time remains in the six-month response period, applicant has 

the remainder of that time to (1) file another request for reconsideration that complies with and/or 

overcomes any outstanding final requirement(s) and/or refusal(s), and/or (2) file a notice of appeal to 

the Board.  TMEP §715.03(a)(ii)(B).  Filing a request for reconsideration does not stay or extend the time 

for filing an appeal.  37 C.F.R. §2.63(b)(3); see TMEP §715.03(c).   

 

 

/Omolayo Adebayo/ 

Examining Attorney 

United States Patent and Trademark Office 

Law Office 121 

Tel: (571) 272-4711 

Email: Omolayo.Adebayo@USPTO.GOV  

 

 

  

https://teas.uspto.gov/office/rfr/
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